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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The John Wiard House is a small frame dwelling dating back to about 1754.
Though it faces Route 4, a busy state highway, it is set quite far back from

the road, which was repositioned to the south some years ago. The original
course of the road can be seen in the driveway, which runs parallel to the:
front of the house. The house is isolated, with no other buildings nearby,
except the small shed which shares the house's lot. There are two medium=
sized maples in front, and lilacs and other shrubs planted close to the walls.

The house is 1% stories high and has a steep gable roof. The plan is rectangu-
lar, with a small woodshed appended to the northeast rear corner. The main or
south facade is five bays wide with a central entranceway and four small windows
tucked up close under the eaves. There is an overhang of the attic story of
about 4" at the gable ends and slightly more in front. The central stack, though
brick above the roof, is constructed of fieldstone, as is the underpinning. The
exterior is clapboarded. The asphalt-shingled roof has been somewhat altered,
projecting more over the gables than is typical for an 18th-century house.

The molded rake boards appear original. From the abrupt termination of the
moldings, it seems there originally was a partial cornice return. The large
five~panel entrance door is surrounded by a two-level frame of boards with
molded edges and a band of raised molding. The bed moldings beneath the eaves
form breaks over the entranceway and each of the four windows, which are fitted
with six=-over-six sash, apparently of early 19th-century origin.

The framing, insofar as it is visible, is typical, though not particularly
heavy, given the early date. Only the rear chimney posts exhibit pronounced
flare, and the plates and girts do not protrude into the rooms. No summer beans
are visible, but large mortises in the underpinning and stack foundation are
evidence that the house originally had summers at least beneath the first story
floor. The roof is of the common rafter type, with a single large purlin on
either side, to which the partitions for the attic rooms are attached.

The interior contains many well-preserved early features. The east front
room has raised panelling on the fireplace wall and across one-third of the
adjacent interior partition. Next to the stone fireplace is a built-in cup-
boarde The rails and stiles of the panelling have cyma moldings, instead of
the usual guarter-round. The kitchen has a similar panelling scheme around its
large cooking fireplace (the detached oven is intact but bricked over), but the
other walls are finished with plain beaded boards, as is the small northwest
rear room. The west front room's woodwork is of a later period, about 1810.

The mantel has panelled pilasters, a large central tablet in the frieze, and a
molded shelf, and there is a chair rail around the reom. Next to the sandstone
and brick hearth is a long cupboard with a flat-panelled door. The raised
moldings around the windows, doorways, and the opening of the east room's
fireplace all appear to be contemporary with this room. Throughout the house

are wide-board oak floors and much early hardware: simple strap hinges, and latches
of both the "Norfolk" and “Suffolk" type.
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earlier John Wiard bought some land in the tract which became Burlington.
Evidence against such an early date includes records of John Wiard's estate

being sold off, a deed showing that John wiard, Jr. bought this tract in 1754,
and local accounts which all say settlement was delayed until the 1740°'s.
Hurlburt's account is a good description of the house, but she errs in calling
Seth Wiard the son (rather than the grandson) of John Wiard, Sr.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The John Wiard House is a significant architectural resource: it is a modest
but largely intact 18th-century house with many interesting exterior and interior
details (Criterion C). Part of the interior was updated about 1810, but rather
than detracting from the integrity of the house, this alteration provides an
opportunity to compare material from the two periods, adding to the architectural
value of the house. Moreover, it was the home of one of Burlington's earliest
settlers, and it is therefore important for its local historical associations
(Criterion A).

The house is typical of its period in most respects, but it is unusual to
find so many features preserved in place. Throughout the house are details which
illustrate 18th-century building practices. The very form of the house, with
its steep gable roof, slight overhang, and low first story, is one of the
characteristic types of the 18th century, though perhaps not as common as the
2% story house. Its molded-board door frame was the simplest type of entrance
treatment, used prior to and concurrent with the more elaborate Georgian and
Federal motifs. The raised-panel fireplace walls, beaded wainscotting in the
rear rooms, wide-board floors, cased posts, strap hinges and original latches
constitute an extensive collection of 18th-century interior elements. The
panelling is somewhat unusual in two respects: in the north front room, it wraps
around the corner onto the adjacent wall, and the stiles and rails have a cyma
rather than the usual quarter-round molding. The pilastered mantel and chair
rail in the south front room, though simple and rural, show something of the more
formal taste of Federal architecture.

In the early 18th century, what is now Burlington was then an uncleared
part of Farmington known as the West Woods, and later as West Britain. In
1721, the area was divided up into tracts and sold, but it remained almost
uninhabited. According to a history of Bristol and Burlington published in
1841, the town of Farmington offered a bounty to the first settler in that
part of town, a reward claimed by someone named Strong in 1740. After Strong,
the earliest settlers were the Lewis, Yale, and Wiard families.

John Wiard (1720-1788) bought a tract of about a hundred acres in 1754,
and one may assume the house was built soon after.” Wiard was a farmer of
moderate means and ran a blacksmith shop as well. His father, John Wiard, had
been an important man in Farmington, a tax collector and large-scale landowner,
but he became overextended and died insolvent when the John Wiard of this house
was but six years old. After 1788, the property passed to Seth Wiard and Seth
Wiard, Jr., one of whom must have added the early l9th-century mantel. These
descendents continued to farm, but also had an interest in a local sawmill.

The Wiard House, in its modest size and simple but well-executed panelling and
other details,reflects well the economic level of this early Burlington family.

1Local tradition gives a date of 1721 for the house, the date when the
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The nominated property is shown as Lot 4 on Burlington Assessor's Map 88, and
is recorded in the town land records, Volume 35, page 279,
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